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Robert 	T. Smalls, Sr.					: 		
							: 	
	v.						:		C-2014-2421019	
							:
UGI Penn Natural Gas, Inc.				:													


INITIAL DECISION 


Before
Ember S. Jandebeur
Administrative Law Judge 


HISTORY OF THE PROCEEDINGS

On May 2, 2014, Robert T. Smalls, Sr. (Complainant) filed a Formal Complaint with the Public Utility Commission (Commission) alleging that “UGI is installing a 12 inch pressurized gas line within 10 feet of my home.  I fear for my safety and that of my family.  I believe a safer route may be used, one that is not within 10 feet of any home.”  As relief he requests that the Commission order UGI to find a safer route.

On May 21, 2014, UGI Penn Natural Gas, Inc. (Respondent) filed an Answer to the Formal Complaint.  In its Answer, the Respondent asserts that the planned route is not unreasonable.

On May 27, 2014, a hearing notice was mailed to the parties, setting the Initial Hearing date for Tuesday, June 24, 2014 and the matter was assigned to me.

On May 28, 2014, I issued a Prehearing Order to the parties setting forth the hearing date and time and various procedural rules.
On June 2, 2014, the Complainant sent the undersigned Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) a letter wishing to withdraw his Formal Complaint.

On June 12, 2014, the Complainant sent the undersigned ALJ a letter wishing to reinstate his Formal Complaint.

The Initial Hearing date was changed to August 7, 2014, due to the unavailability of one of the Respondent’s witnesses.

The Initial Hearing date of August 7, 2014 was changed to August 11, 2014, at the ALJ’s request.

The Initial Hearing was held on August 11, 2014.  The Complainant appeared pro se; the Respondent was represented by counsel.  The Complainant submitted thirty-four (34) exhibits.  Twenty-six (26) were admitted into evidence.  The Respondent submitted five (5) exhibits; all were admitted in evidence.  The record closed with receipt of the transcript on September 2, 2014.  This matter is now ready for decision.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Complainant is Robert T. Smalls, Sr.  He resides at 852 North Washington Street, Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania and receives natural gas service from the Respondent.  Tr. at 8.
 
2. The Respondent, UGI Penn Natural Gas, Inc. is a jurisdictional public utility providing natural gas service to Pennsylvania citizens.

3. The Respondent is locating one of its high pressure gas lines beside the Complainant’s home.  Tr. at 8, Written Testimony Dunlap at 4.

4. The Complainant is concerned for his safety (“alarmed”) with the gas line moving beside his home.  Tr. at 8, 12.

5. Other routes for the gas line are available.  Tr. at 14, 26.

6. The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers did not require approval of the Respondent’s project.  Tr. at 54-55.

7. The Respondent chose a route that did not disturb the Brookside levee and did not interfere with PPL wires.  Tr. at 55.

8. The Respondent initially sought an easement, but later found out that they did not need one.  Tr. at 57.

9. The Respondent found that it could proceed with the construction of the high pressure gas line with a street opening permit.  That permit has been issued by the City of Wilkes-Barre.  Tr. at 57-58.

10. The Respondent conducted two outreach meetings.  Tr. at 57-58.

11.  No Commission approval is needed for this project.  Tr. at 58.

12. The City of Wilkes-Barre does not have any setback requirements.  Tr. at 59.

13. The federal standards that apply to this project do not prohibit high pressure gas mains in public streets where houses may be in close proximity because distribution to urban areas would then be very difficult.  Written Testimony Dunlap at 2.

14. A high pressure main carries some incremental risk that needs to be weighed against the public benefits of having access to the gas.  Written Testimony Dunlap at 2.
15. The Respondent conducted routing studies before choosing which route to use for the high pressure gas line.  Tr. at 63.

16. The Respondent’s chosen route is longer but avoids more residences.  Written Testimony Dunlap at 3, Tr. at 64.

17. The Respondent concluded that the chosen route strikes the best balance between system needs and reduced risk.  Written Testimony Dunlap at 3.

18. The Respondent must conduct a variety of periodic inspections of its gas line.  Tr. at 62.

19. The gas main will be installed at four feet and will be hydrostatically tested at 600 psi.  The operating pressure will be 282 pounds.  Tr. at 78.

20. The Respondent will have continuous monitoring of the gas main by an inspector.  Tr. at 79.

21. The pipeline will have pipeline markers installed on it to help prevent inadvertent strikes during any construction.  Tr. at 79.

DISCUSSION

Burden of Proof:

As the party seeking affirmative relief from the Commission, the Complainant bears the burden of proof.  66 Pa.C.S. § 332(a).  To establish a sufficient case and satisfy the burden of proof, the Complainant must show that the Respondent public utility is responsible or accountable for the problem described in the Complaint.  Patterson v. Bell Telephone Company of Pennsylvania, 72 Pa. PUC 196 (1990), Feinstein v. Philadelphia Suburban Water Company, 50 Pa. PUC 300 (1976).  Such a showing must be by a preponderance of the evidence.  Samuel J. Lansberry, Inc. v. Pa. Pub. Util. Comm’n, 134 Pa.Cmwlth. 218; 221-222, 578 A.2d 600; 602 (1990), alloc. den., 602 A.2d 863 (1992).  That is, a party must present evidence more convincing, by even the smallest amount, than that presented by the other party.  Se-Ling Hosiery v. Margulies, 364 Pa. 45, 70 A.2d 854 (1950).  Additionally, any finding of fact necessary to support the Commission’s adjudication must be based upon substantial evidence.  Mill v. Pa. Pub. Util. Comm’n, 67 Pa.Cmwlth. 597, 447 A.2d 1100 (1982), Edan Transportation Corp. v. Pa. Pub. Util. Comm’n, 154 Pa.Cmwlth. 21, 623 A.2d 6 (1993), 2 Pa.C.S. § 704.  More is required than a mere trace of evidence or a suspicion of the existence of a fact sought to be established.  Norfolk and Western Ry. v. Pa. Pub. Util. Comm’n, 489 Pa. 109, 413 A.2d 1037 (1980); Erie Resistor Corp. v. Unemployment Compensation Bd. of Review, 194 Pa.Super. 278, 166 A.2d 96 (1960); Murphy v. Dep’t of Public Welfare, White Haven Center, 85 Pa.Cmwlth. 23, 480 A.2d 382 (1984).

The issue raised in this Formal Complaint is that the Respondent is putting in a high pressure gas line adjacent to the Complainant’s home.  The siting of the line concerns (“alarms”) the Complainant and he believes a different location would be better.  The Respondent asserted that they did an analysis of various available routes and believes that this one is the best for a variety of reasons.

In order to prevail, the Complainant must prove that the siting of the new high pressure line adjacent to his home violates the Public Utility Code (Code), Commission regulations or Commission order.

Siting of Gas Lines:

Pursuant to the Commission’s regulations at 52 Pa.Code § 59.33(b), the Commission’s Gas Safety Division has the authority to enforce the federal gas pipeline safety regulations, set forth at 49 U.S.C.A. §§ 60101, et seq., and implemented in 49 C.F.R. Subchapter D entitled “Pipeline Safety.”

The Complainant presented no evidence that the Respondent violated the Code, Commission regulation or order, or any federal regulations.  The Complainant presented a timeline of his meetings and conversations with various people, including the solicitor for Wilkes-Barre, councilmen, and attorneys. (Tr. at 9-39).  The Complainant alleged fear for the safety of his wife and himself, but nowhere does the Complainant allege that the Respondent has violated the Code or any federal regulation.  Additionally, the Complainant presented newspaper articles and articles taken from the Internet.  Both were objected to based upon hearsay, and they were not admitted.

The Respondent rebutted the Complainant’s allegations of safety concerns while admitting that there are incremental risks with any gas pipeline.  (Written Testimony Dunlap at 4.)  The Respondent found that the proposed pipeline “avoids more residences while still enabling [the Respondent] to reach the pressure reduction stations necessary to feed the distribution system segments.”  (Written Testimony Dunlap at 3.)  The Respondent concluded that the proposed pipeline route struck the best balance between system needs and reduced risk.  (Written Testimony Dunlap at 3.)

No Commission approval is required for the location of this gas pipeline.  Tr. at 58.  The City of Wilkes-Barre has approved the line and issued a permit for it.  Tr. at 58.

There is a body of safety regulations that applies to the construction of this gas pipeline.  Tr. at 59.  The regulations that apply are found in the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Title 49, Subchapter D.  None of the applicable rules prohibit the location of a high pressure line in a street such as the Complainant’s.  Tr. at 59.  There is no standard for close proximity in the federal regulations or state law.  Tr. at 63.

The Respondent conducted a routing study before choosing the current location.  Tr. at 63.  The Respondent tried to avoid as many structures as possible.  Tr. at 64, 79.  The Respondent avoided siting the line on the nearby levee because it would be a safer installation. Tr. at 67.

In summary, the Complainant presented his concern for his and his wife’s safety due to the proximity of a high pressure gas pipeline being installed adjacent to his home thoroughly.  He explained his involvement in the siting of this gas pipeline, but failed to allege any violation of the Code or federal regulations.  The Complainant failed to meet his burden of proving that the Respondent violated any law, regulation or a Commission order regarding the siting of this high pressure gas line.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. The Commission is a duly constituted agency of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania empowered to regulate utilities within Pennsylvania pursuant to the Public Utility Code (Code), 66 Pa.C.S. §§ 101 et seq.

2. The minimum safety standards for all natural gas and hazardous liquid public utilities in this Commonwealth shall be those issued under the pipeline safety laws found at 49 U.S.C.A. §§ 60101-60503 and as implemented at 49 CFR Parts 191-193, 195 and 199, including all subsequent amendments.  52 Pa.Code § 59.33(b).

3. The Complainant failed to prove that the Respondent’s choice of siting for its high pressure gas pipeline is unreasonable, unsafe, inefficient, or inadequate.  66 Pa.C.S. § 1501.

4. The Complainant failed to prove that the Respondent violated any regulation found at 49 CFR Parts 191-193, 195 and 199. 

ORDER


THEREFORE, 

IT IS ORDERED: 

1. That the Formal Complaint filed by Robert T. Smalls, Sr. at Docket No. C-2014-2421019 is dismissed.


2. That the Secretary’s Bureau shall mark Docket No. C-2014-2421019 closed.


	
Date:  October 24, 2014							/s/			
								Ember S. Jandebeur
								Administrative Law Judge
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